. == RUNNING
JOURNAL

L
ictoVioL"d‘
Soc’nQ’k“‘ osi'-v
M._.seuwn -
Trawmway
: Running Jogrnq\
S rt y P e
i I 58 S r—3
St

L
|
1

VOLUME_:__ NO il PRICE 12 CENTS

-

M.B. & C. Tram No. 16 photographed in Nicholson Street, Coburg.
Melbourne & Metropolitan Tramways Board photo.
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A well-patronised Beaumaris horse-tram.
Beaumaris & District Historical Trust Photo,

EDITORIAL

I have recently been accused of taking a pessimistic view in many
of my notes in this journal, however, after recently inspecting a list of the
hours of work performed by each membexr for the Society I cannot help continuing
to do so. Those who have seen the Birney Car No. 217 as it is today, cannot
fail to be impressed, but more important, they must realise the enormous amount
of work which has been put into this car by a small group of regular workers.
Comparatively speaking, restoration of No. 217 has been a simple task performed
under good working conditions. When the time comes, as we all hope it will,
that we have a museum site, the work which will be required in laying track
and restoring a whole fleet of cars cannot possibly be carried out except with
a large and active group of workers. The outlook for the future cannot help
but be depressing until every member realises that the only person who can make
our project a success is himself, Those who claim that the Society should look
forward instead of back are cordially invited to attend our work parties and
meet those members who are constantly pushing our program ahead. They may
then see the great potential which we have if every member is prepared to
contribute even a little of his time.

Further copies of this publication can be
utained from the Society’s Sales Dept. Officer e
ANDREW HOWLETT,
143 Bambra Rd. Caulfield. Tel. §3-3079
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THE MELBOURNE, BRUNSWICK AND COBURG TRAMWAYS TRUST
by R.H. PRENTICE

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED CONSTITUTION

The Melbourne, Brunswick and Coburg Tramways Trust was constituted
by the Melbourne, Brunswick and Coburg Tramways Act 1914, Its Board consisted
of a Chairman (Thos. O'L Reynolds, Esq., J.P., 1914 to take-over), plus two -
Councillors from each of the interested Councils, Over the years under review,
the constituent Councils were represented on the Trust by the following named
gentlemen :-

Melbourne
Ald. Sir D.V, Hennessy, 1914 to take-over.
Ald, John Gardiner, J.P., 1914 to take-over.
. Brunswick,
Cr. F,T. Hickford, M,A., 1914 to 1917.

Cr. J. Millward, J.P., 1914 to take-over,
Cr. A.G., Wales, 1918 to take-over,
Coburg.

Cr. A. Bush, 1914 to 1918.
Cr. H.J. Richards, J,P., 1914 to take-over,
Cr. W.E. Cash, 1918 to take-over,

The Act incorporating the Melbourne and Metropolitan Tramways Board
passed through Parliament and the Board came into being on the lst November, 1919,
taking control of the Cable Tramways as from that date, whilst the Electric Tramways
were merged under the one control as from the 2nd February, 1920, The Government
appointed the Chairman of the Trust, T. O'L. Reynolds, Esq., as a member of the
new Board.

OPENING OF THE LINE

The work of designing and constructing the tramways was commenced in
~June, 1914, The Coburg section, viz., that in Sydney Road between Moreland

Road and Bell Street, was opened for traffic on the 27th April; the section from

Bell Street to Bakers Road came into use on the 14th May, and the section from
Sydney Road to Park Street on the 14th August, Difficulties in the supply of various
materials delayed the official opening; however, the tramway was completed to
Queensberry Street and the undertaking officially declared open on Tuesday, 31st
October, 1916, by the Hon. the Minister for Public Works, Mr, W,A, Adamson,ML.C.

EXTENSIONS

In 1916, it was fully recognised that an extension of the system from
Queensberry Street along Madeline (now the northern section of Swanston Street)
and Swanston Street to Lonsdale Street would be of great advantage to the Trust
and a convenience to the travelling public, but to carry this out it would be
necessary for the section of the cable tramway from Queensberry Street to Lonsdale
Street to be vested in the Trust. With this object in view, a deputation waited on
the Minister of Public Works and laid the proposal fully before him, and he undertook
to bring the matter before the Cabinet. This extension was considered of the
greatest importance, and it was hoped that the negotiations which were proceeding,
would have resulted in putting the Trust in a position to be able to provide a
convenient City terminus to its system, which would have proved a source of public
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satisfaction and advantage to the Municipalities constituting the Trust. To
facilitate traffic in the meantime, a system of transfer tickets was inaugurated,

and it enabled passengers who wished to travel on the electric cars to journey on
the cable car from City Road, South Melbourne, to Queensberry Street, Carlton, or
vice versa, for 1c,

During 1917 and 1918, considerable negotiations took place in connection
with this proposed extension, but further consideration by the Government was
deferred pending the constitution of a central Tramway Authority, but as the proposed
Bill was held up indefinitely, negotiations were resumed, with a view to the much-
desired extension being brought about,

Another extension planned was from Bakers Road, along Sydney Road,
to the New Melbourne General Cemetery, at Fawkner, about one mile in length,
the preliminaries had been arranged by October, 1916, and the various Councils
agreed to indemnify the Trust against loss up to a fixed sum per annum over a term
of four years. In 1917, the draft agreement for the extension was submitted to
the Councils and the Trust and this agreement was sealed by all parties during
1918, and the Trust, through its Chairman, had several interviews with the
Minister for Public Works, who undertook to bring the question before the Cabinet
with a view to the project being included in the schedule of Tramways authorised to
be constructed in the Tramways Bill before Cabinet. However, the Trust was duly
informed by the Department that it had been decided not to grant any extensions
pending the passage of the Bill through the House.

The southern terminus of the syStem was extended in 1918 for a short
distance south of Queensberry Street, and afforded a much apprec1ated convenience
to passengers changing trams at that point,

PROPOSED TRAMWAY

A report, dated 25th October, 1915, was made on a propesed Tramway,
by Valentine J. Crowley, A.A.I.E.E.

The route was to run up Queen Street from Flinders Street to the
Melbourne Cemetery (now part of the Victoria Market), then along Franklin Street
to William Street, thence to Royal Park corner at Flemington Road via Howard,
Courtney and Errol Streets, through Royal Park to McVean Street, Brunswick,
along Brunswick Road to Grantham Street, then along Dawson Street to Pearson
Street (taking in a twenty-foot strip of ground belonging to the Hoffman Brick
Company in Dawson Street), Continuing north along Pearson Street, it reached
Moreland Road by a westerly deviation from Albion Street to Forbes Street, It
then ran along Donne Street, Coburg, to Sussex Street, at the corner of Gaffney
Road, which was to be the proposed northern terminus. A spur track was to be
built down Moreland Road from Forbes Street, Brunswick, to Sydney Road, to
allow the cars to reach the sheds belonging to the Trust.

The total length was estimated to be 8 miles 23 chains 25 links, Of this
total, 5 miles 3 chains 75 links was to be double track, and 3 miles 19 chains
50 links in single track, making a total track length of single and double track
of 13 miles 27 chains., The proposed Tramway was, naturally, to be similar to
the existing lines, consisting of 600 volt direct current overhead line, and standard
gauge rails, the tracks to be set on 10 ft. centres. Both bogie and single truck
rolling stock ‘were to be pronded the cars collecting current by means of a
trolley from figure 8 copper wire, supported by tubular steel poles in the City,
and round wooden poles in the suburbs.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE UNDERTAKING

A thickness of 8 inches of ballast was provided under the sleepers,
and to ensure the foundation remaining hard and dry, a subsoil drain of 3 inch
agricultural tiles was provided under each track, with frequent outfalls along
the route, Redgum, grey box and ironbark sleepers were used throughout. On
about 6 miles of track, the joints were made with ferrignite, but this process
was abandoned and the remaining 6 miles done with the oxyacetylene process,
which, in 1916, gave every sign of proving satisfactory. The road surface was
paved with Gilsonite, with a vitrified brick against the rail to decrease
maintenance. Gauge of the track was standard 4ft. 8}in. The road surface
was in first-rate condition everywhere, except on a part of Sydney Road, so the
pavement Contractor was called upon to make the necessary repairs.

Both steel and wood poles were used for the overhead construction, five
miles being constructed with steel poles and two miles with dressed ironbark poles.
The difference in cost was about $10 per pole, and the wood poles were quite as
good in appearance as those of steel. Special steel poles with an extension five
feet long were provided in Melbourne on one side of the street for the Council's
overl;ead mains (the Council confined their wires to one side and the Trust to the
other).

The span wire system was adopted throughout, compared with centre
poles, as largely used on other local lines and same became standard practice
in Melbourne. In order to avoid trouble caused by span wires breaking, a
slightly heavier wire than usual was used.

The double track extended from Queensberry Street, Melbourne, to
Wilsons Road, Coburg; from there to the terminus at Bakers Road, and in
Nicholson Street, was single track.

The track mileage of the system was thus :-
Single .... 1.77 miles.
Double .... 5.26 "
Total ..... 12.29 miles.

- The innovations introduced in construction did have a beneficial effect
‘on maintenance costs., The drainage provided in the subgrade or foundation
kept this important feature of construction firm and dry, so that it was not
necessary to lift more than 50 ft. of rail while the bricks set along the rail
prevented the asphalt from breaking away at this point. In 1918, a few broken
joints which required attention were welded with the Trust's 'Electric Arc
Weld' apparatus. Special work for a crossover at Bell Street was available
in 1918, but the installation was delayed owing to difficulty in obtaining some of
the overhead equipment, It was estimated that it would be to hand shortly, whereupon
the work would proceed.

POWER SUPPLIES

Power was purchased from the Melbourne City Council Electric Supply
under rather different conditions from those prevailing with other Municipal
Electric Tramway Undertakings in Melbourne. Both the Prahran and Malvern
and the Hawthorn Trusts purchased current at the Direct Current Bus Bars, the
Supply Company installing and operating the sub-station. The M. B, & C. Trust
bought high tension alternating 6000 volt 3—-phase current from the Melbourne City
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Council on a.flat rate and maximum demand system, and installed its own sub-station.
The equipment of the station included two 200 K.W. rotary converter sets, one 50 K. W,
transformer for the supply of light and power at the Depot, and two 10 K. W, series
transformers for track lighting, together with the necessary switchboard and control
gear. No storage battery was installed, and the station was automatic, not requiring
a constant attendant. In 1918, an additional Rotary Converter was ordered and
delivery was effected and the equipment put into use prior to the 30th September,1919.
1,072,222 high tension units were supplied to the 30th September, 1917, at an average
cost of 1.031c. per unit. The output of the substation was 933,019 units, at an average
cost per unit of 1.216c. The maximum demand was at the rate of 300 K.W., or 25 K.W.
per car in service.

At the 30th September, 1918, 1,388,500 high tension units were supplied at
an average cost of 1,035c. per unit, The output of the substation for the period was
1,179,840 units at an average cost per unit of 1.25c. The maximum demand was 366
K.W., or 20 K.W, per car in service. In 1919, 1,528,110 units were supplied at an
average cost per unit of 1.019c. The output of the substation was 1,279,859
units at an average cost per unit of 1.217c. The maximum demand reached 546 K.W.,

or 30.3 K,W, per car in service..
GENERATL,

The Postmaster-General's Department removed all overhead wires from
the streets along which the tramway ran, so that when the Brunswick Council's
lighting wires were transferred to the Trust's poles, the only poles along the route
of the tramway were those belonging to the Trust.

The various stopping places in Brunswick and Coburg were lit by the
Trust with 100 C.P. and 250 C.P. high efficiency incandescent lamps on the series
system,

The lighting of the route in the City of Melbourne was supplied by the
City Council, who supplied high candle power incandescent lamps suspended over the
centre of the street and spaced approximately 100 yards< apart. Lygon, Elgin and
Madeline Streets were among the best illuminated streets in the City.

An agreement was made with the Coburg Council to provide 12 additional
lights in Sydney Road, and when these were installed, the lighting of that street
compared with any in the Melbourne Suburbs.

DEPOT AND OFFICES

They were located on frechold land at the corner of Moreland Road and
Nicholson Street, Coburg. Under the one roof were all administrative offices,
substation, store, workshop and car depot. As constructed, there was space for 20
cars, and this could have been increased at small expense to provide for four times
that number,

Provision was made in the workshop for all necessary tools for repair
work, viz., Radial Drill, Sensitive Drill, Wheel Press, Wheel Lathe,ti gh Speed Lathe,
Hack Saw, Emery Wheel and Buff, and Emery Stone. All were direct motor driven, so
that there was no cumbersome overhead shafting in the shop. ;

ROLLING STOCK

The Trust's rolling stock consisted of 12 single truck combination cars,
capable of seating 44 passengers, 24 in the saloon and 20 in the outside smoking
compartments. The truck wheel base was 7 feet. The motors were of 55 H.P.
capacity of self-ventilated box frame type, embodying all the latest improvements and
ensuring very economical operation. The cars were the first in Melbourne to be
equipped with air brakes, and they gave every satisfaction. Another 6 combination
cars were placed on order in 1916, being furnished with similar electrical and brake
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equipment but mounted on radial type trucks with 12 feet wheelbase., The cars were
painted greer and white, and were admired by all who saw them, The interior was
finished in native timbers, varnished and polished in their natural colours. Lighting
was provided by 6 lamps, of 16 C.P. each, fitted with opal shades, and were a great
improvement on the old style of lighting. A special relay operated contactor was
introduced, which did all the making and breaking of the main current supply, thus
decreasing maintenance of controllers, and preventing any danger of fire in the
motorman's cabin. The cars weighed 24,800 1bs., and seated 44 passengers.

All of these cars were expected to be in service by the end of October, 1917,

A works car was built for track cleaning, emergency work, etc., and
proved very useful,

Steps were being taken to obtain 6 additional cars by 30th September,
1918 and, when completed, the number available for traffic would be 24, 1In 1919,
it was reported that the electrical equipment was being delivered., )
(See Rolling Stock Notes on pages 16 and 17).

CAR MILES
As at the 30th September ...

Council Section. 1916 1917 1918 1919
Melbourne Nil 199,144 245,233 245,706
Brunswick 14,933 180,866 211,268 213,881
Coburg 33, 285 158 2447 202 : 795 209,442
Totals 70,218 538,457 659,296 669,029

PASSENGERS CARRIED
1916 1917 1918 1919
718,958 4,364,593 5,404,247 5,886,253

RESULTS OF OPERATION

The revenue to the 30th September, 1916, amounted to $6,846.35, whilst
the ordinary expenditure on operation, plus interest on capital, was $6,232.99,
leaving a surplus of $613.36, but unfortunately as the result of a collision between
cars in Sydney Road shortly after the opening of that section, this sum was swallowed
up in compensation and expenses, leaving a debit balance of $186,64.

Revenue, Expenditure. Surplus for allocatim
1917 $57,348.05 $50,398.13 $6,949,92
1918 $72,149,71 $64,111.03 $8,038,68
1919 $80,098.21 $71,789.48 $8,308,.72
TICKE TS

Conductors were warned to carefully examine the tickets supplied to them by
the Receiving Clerks, and to check them with the Revenue Journal before signing it.
The tickets were lettered in 4 series, "A", "B", "C", and "D", Care had to be
taken to use tickets of the right series for the day. If a Conductor was supplied with
tickets, and for any reason did not use them on the day for which they were issued,
he was instructed to return them to the office when paying in,
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SECTIONS AND FARES

The completed Tramway route was divided into the following sections:~

Queensberry Street to Princes Street via Madeline, Elgin and Lygon Streets.

Princes Street to Park Street via Lygon Street.

Park Street to Albion Street via Lygon Street.

Albion Street to Sydney Road via Holmes Street and Moreland Road.

Moreland Road to Bell Street via Sydney Road.

Bell Street to Bakers Road via Sydney Road.

Moreland Road to Bell Street via Nicholson Street.

The fare was 1 cent for each passenger per section, with the following
exceptions:-

(a) No fare payable for children under 4 years of age carried in arms,

(b) Children over 4 and under 12 years of age, and children under 4 who
were not carried in arms, were carried for the following fares:-

Over any 2 consecutive sections le.
Over 3 or 4 consecutive sections 2c.
Minimum fare per child 1c.

Provided that for any one or more sections the fare to be charged for 2
children travelling together under the age of 12 years shall not exceed the fare
charged for 1 adult, '

(c) The following through fares were charged:-

Queensberry Street to Albion Street or vice versa. 2c.
Queensberry Street to Bell Street via Sydney Road, or
Nicholson Street or vice versa 3c.
Queensberry Street to Bakers Road or vice versa 4c,
For children the through fares were:-
Queensberry Street to Albion Street or vice versa 1c.
Queensberry Street to Bakers or Bell Street, via
Nicholson Street or vice versa 2c.

(d The charge for Monthly Tickets to school children under the age of 18
years and over 3 sections was 25c., and for 4 or more consecutive sections 50c.,
for the purpose of journeying to and from school on school days, _

(e) Blind persons were allowed to travel free on the Tramways, provided
that their attendants paid the ordinary fares chargeable thereon,

On Children's cash fare ticket, the number of the last section travelled
over had to be punched twice. Conductors were instructed that on no occasion were
they to permit school children travelling on monthly tickets to travel on same, except
during the hours for which they were available, namely, up to 5.30 p.m.onweek days,
and 1,30 p.m. on Saturdays.

MINIMUM FARE CARS

Conductors working cars known as Minimum Fare care were instructed to call
out "Minimum Fare, 2c." or whatever the amount may be, and they could not collect
less than the minimum fare. This rule applied to adult passengers only, not children.,
"Minimum Fare" cars became ordinary cars on arrival at the end of the first section
on down trip, at which point the front and rear side "Minimum Fare" boards were
reversed until arrival at the terrmnus. It was the Motorman's duty to reverse the
boards.
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FINANCIAL

The Trust's borrowing powers provided for the raising of $400,000 by
the issue of debentures and a further $20,000 on overdraft.

COST OF UNDERTAKING

The total costs of the Trust's undertaking to the 30th September, in the
years under review are listed hereunder, but did not include the portion of
Contracts not completed,

1916 1917 1918 1919
$263,993.12 $316,050.09 $336,158.91. $354,584.67
APPOINTMENTS

During 1918, the Engineer and Manager (Mr. Straun Robertson), resigned
his appointment to take a similar position in the service of the Hawthorn Tramways
Trust. It was decided to appoint Mr. M.K. Westcott (Works Superintendent) to the
position of Engineer, the Management being left in the hands of the Chairman,

EXTRACTS FROM THE TRUST'S RULES AND REGULATIONS AND BELAWS

Railway Crossing at Park Street

The Motormen were instructed not to approach the railway points at the
crossing at a speed of more than 4 miles per hour. The points may have been
prevented from working properly through dirt or stones getting into the apparatus.,
Cars must be stopped at indicated compulsory stops when approaching the railway,
and must not proceed until the signals are in their favour and the gates are open to
Tramway Traffic.

Instructions for Motormen and Conductors.

Motormen had to come on duty at least 10 minutes before starting time, so
that they could assure themselves that all operating gear, brakes, sanding gear,
etc., were in good order; and both Motormen and Conductors had to examine the car to
see that it was in first-class condition, free from dust, dirt and grease, floors and
windows clean, and everything in readiness to start promptly on time. Employees were
considered to have received the cars in good order unless any defect was reported at
once,

All Inspectors, Conductors and Motormen had to carry a good reliable watch,
and to keep it set by the Talykron clock at the Depot.

Badges, buttons and name plates had to be kept bright and clean, and under
no circumstances could they be lent or given to any other person,

Full authorised uniform, including cap and all badges, had to be worn by all
employees whilst on duty, or whilst travelling free, to and from duty. Black boots
only, neatly polished, and in good order, must be worn. Working without wearing
the uniform was absolutely forbidden, and men could not wear cycle trouser clips
or any other unauthorised articl es while on duty,

Employees were instructed to be always neat and clean in their appearance.
Motormen and Conductors had to wear white collars whilst on duty, and had to keep
their tunics buttoned right to the neck.

Motormen and Conductors had to understand that uniforms were to last for
a specific period, and if work out or damaged through improper use they were to be
replaced at the expense of the wearer,
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Hereunder is the schedule of the periods for which the uniforms were to
last, also the value of same:-

Period Value.
Overcoats. 5 years £3.5.0 $6.50
Mackintoshes, 3years 2. 5.0 4,50
Oilskins 3 years 1.15. 0 3.50
Caps. 1% years 10. O 1.00
Tunics, 16 months 2.13. 0 5.30
Trousers. 11 months 1.10. O 3.00

The following schedule sets out the value of the various articles issued to
employees: these amounts will be charged in the event of such articles being lost or
damaged through improper use:-

White Cap Covers, £0. 1. 0 $ 0.10
Waterproof Cap Covers 0.1.0 0.10
Cap Badge Shields 0.2,6 0,25
Number Badges 0.2.0 0.20
Collar Name Badges 0.2.6 0.25
Ticket Punches 1. 0. O 2.00
Conductors! Cash Bags 1.15.0 3.00
Dusters. ! 0.1.0 0.10
Tool-box Equipment.
Trolley Tongs 0.6, 6 0,65
Insulated Cable, per yard, 0.2.0 0.20
Hand Broom : ger2tlo 0.20
Pinch Bar 0.2.6 0.25
Oilcan 0.2, 6 0.25
Car Hand Lamp 0.7.56 0.75
Miscellaneous
Telephone and Staff Keys £0, 2. 6 0.25
Controller Handles 1. 0. 0O 2,00
Reversing Handles 0.7.6 0.75
Signal Lamps 1. 0. 0 2.00
Time Recorder Keys 0.2.6 0.25
Coasting Recorder Keys 0. 2. 6 0.25
Air Brake Handles 0.5.0 0,50

Breakages

When windows were broken by passengers and others, the Conductors had to
obtain full particulars as possible and report, stating whether saloon, door windows,
etc., as the case may be. They also had to obtain such passengers' names and
addresses, and endeavour to collect for the windows, etc., broken through negligence
of passengers, the following amounts:-

Motorman's Protector Windows. £-0.5.0 $ 0.50

Bulkhead and Partition Windows 0. 5.0 0.50
Saloon Drop Windows 0.10. O 1.00
Saloon Door Windows 0.10. O 1.00
Saloon Fixed Windows 0. 5.0 0.50



Bell Signals,
(a% Conductor to Motorman —-

1 stroke ~- Stop, also Pause, Stop.
2 strokes -~ Go ahead,
3 strokes =-- Stop (urgent signal)
4 strokes =~ Car Full, No stops ... 2 strokes on starting and 2 strokes
after car started.
(b) Motorman to Conductor —-
1 stroke ~— Apply rear hand brake,
2 strokes -- Let off rear brake.
3 strokes -- Attend to Trolley
4 strokes -—- Come forward.

Instructions for Motormen Only.

Running on the wrong track was forbidden, unless Motormen were specially
directed to do so by an Inspector or other Officer,

In taking cars out from the shed to take up .running, those cars going to
Sydney Road had to run on the wrong track in Nicholson Street in shunting.
Conductors had to throw over the points for that operation.

When the down-car was waiting at the turnouts in Nicholson Street and at Wilson
Street, to allow the up car from the terminus to pass, the Motorman had to always
ascertain if there was more than 1 car to pass. Cars were not permitted to be
brought to a stop opposite one another, but had to stop head to head, except where
Separate signs were provided, when cars had to stop opposite the signs.

All cars had to stop before entering the curves at the corner of Moreland
and Sydney Roads and the corner of Moreland Road and Holmes Street., The Conductor
had to signal the 'all clear' before the Motorman could proceed. Two cars were not
permitted to be in these curves at the one time. At all times the up car was given
precedence., Speed in the curves at the Moreland Road Corners was set at 4 miles
per hour., Speed on other curves was as under :-

Corner of Madeline and Elgin Streets, 5 m.p
Corner of Elgin and Lygon Streets, 6 m.p
Corner of Albion Street, 6 m.p

Run No. Discs,
Conductors were held responsible for seeing that the cars leaving the Depot
bore the correct run discs for the line on which they were to travel.

Staff Working.

A staff box with ticket drawer was fixed at each staff section, and the drawer
could only be opened by the staff for the section to which the tickets applied.
1f other cars were intended to follow before the staff could be returned, a staff
ticket had to be obtained by the Motorman of the first car, the staff for the section
being seen by him, and so on with each following car, except the last, which carried
the staff itself. Each staff had marked upon it the name of the staff section to which
it applied, and it was not permitted to be carried beyond such section without the
authority of the Chief Traffic Inspector. No car could leave a staff section until
the Motorman had received the proper staff or staff ticket, except when pilot working
was in force. When a car was required to run over a staff section, and no second
car was intended to follow before the staff was required for a car in the opposite
direction, the Motorman had to obtain the staff and place it on the ledge in the front
of him with the lettered side uppermost. On arriving at the end of the section to which
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the staff applied, the staff had to be placed in the staff box, unless immediately
required for another car, or authority had been issued for it to be carried beyond
that section.

Time Recorders

The A.M. Motorman on each car was given a numbered Recorder Key when
signing on daily, and had to hand this key over to the Motorman relieving him,
Intermediate and P.M, Motormen had to obtain this key when taking charge of a car,
and the Broken Shift and P.M, Motormen had to hand in the Recorder Key when
signing off,

Motormen had to carry the Key of their run with them the whole of the time
they were in charge of the car.

The Record tape was removed daily from the Recorder by the proper Officer,

Instructions for Trailer Operation -~ Conductors only.

When Electric cars were to be run coupled, the Conductor "in charge" had to
be on the front car, and his Assistant or Assistants on the rear cars, and ALWAYS
in a position at stopping places, whether collecting fares or not, which gave an
unobstructed view of passengers entering or leaving the cars, -

When coupled cars were running to the Depot, the Assistant Conductor had
to stand on the rear platform of the last trailer by the hand brake.

Assistant Conductors were instructed to give the "all clear" signals
VERBALLY TO THE CONDUCTOR "IN CHARGE", who was the only one to give the
regulation "go ahead" signal to driver.,

No trams could be shunted backwards unless the Conductor "in charge"
was at the rear end of the last trailer, in a position to give signals or to use the
brake easily.

When regulations requlred a flying shunt to be made, the Conductor must be
in the proper position on the front end of the second car. .

When coupled cars had to be shunted at Nicholson Street Junction or elsewhere,
the Assistant Conductors had to help in shunting before leaving their trams to do
other work or to sign off, :

Care of Cars

Coupling pins of the cars were not allowed to trail, On the Electric cars,
drawbars had to be placed on the hook provided when not in use, espema.lly on cars
fitted with wheel guard tripping gate.

Drawbars on the trailing car at the rear end were to be hooked up by the chain
provided. Motormen were held responsible for the front end and the Conductors the
rear end of the car,

CREDITS

The writer gratefully acknowledges the assistance given by Mr. W. Aird,
Secretary of the Melbourne and Metropolitan Tramways Board, who allowed the
Annual Reports of the Melbourne, Brunswick and Coburg Tramways Trust to be
examined, Mr, K,S. Kings for once again supplying the technical information, and
Archives of The Tramway Museum Society of Vic. Ltd. for other information.



= 3=
PERSONAL.

Member Noel Gipps was recently on two months' loan from the S.E.C. to the
Snowy Mountains authority at Khancoban, and upon his return to Melbourne spent
several days in hospital for surgery. Noel should be back in circulation by the time
this appears in print.

CAR NEWS,

The Geelong "Pengelly" car No, 22 has had to be relinquished due to our
inability to find a suitable storage site in Melbourne before the time allowed for its
removal had expired.

Work parties at Malvern continue every second Sunday, still with a
disappointing response from members. The small group who have been working on
the Birney car are looking forward to its completion within the coming months, A
large program of work is being planned after 217 is completed and we will need many
new recruits to our work force. Why not join the crew at Malvern and enjoy the sight
of our cars being restored to their original condition?

A spare set of two, wheel, axle and gear sets for T class 182 have been
acquired to replace the existing running gear which is heavily worn. These parts
are presently in store, awaiting use at a future date.

‘The M. & M.T.B. have kindly machined for us the axles and wheels which
are to be fitted to the Horse Car. We offer the Board our thanks for their assistance in
this project. :

SITE NEWS.

Following our approach to the Minister for Transport, Mr. Meagher, in
connection with our search for a site, Chairman Bob Prentice received the following
letter from Mr. S,.J. Loxton, M.L,A, on the 19th April, 1966 -=

"Dear Mr. Loxton,

You will recall that last year you brought Mr. R.H. Prentice, -Chairman
and General Manager of the Tramway Museum Society of Victoria to see me,
with a request that I investigate the possibility of finding a suitable piece of
land on which Mr, Prentice's Society could build and operate a Tramway Museum.

During the intervening period I have discussed this proposal with the
Victorian Railways Commissioners, the Melbourne and Metropolitan Tramways
Board, the Puffing Billy Preservation Society and others, but regret to say
that I have been unable to find anything which would meet the Society's
requirements,

I return herewith the documents left with me by Mr. Prentice, and regret
that I have been unable to help in this matter."



L. g

Following receipt of this letter, a committee was formed to investigate
the replies of members to questionnaire MGR162, The committee consisting of
Messrs. Noel Gipps, Peter Stoneham and John Rawnsley will shortly present a
report to the Board analyzing these replies and makmg certain recommendations
as to site layout etc. Meanwhile the site search is continuing and currently the
situation appears quite hopeful.

WHO ATTENDS BOARD MEE TINGS?

The Secretary has supplied the following details from the minutes in answer
to a recent query:-

Firstly, members of the Board of Directors whose attendances are detailed
in the annual report, (of which members have the First and Second, and will shortly
have the Third.) Secondly, non-Directors may attend Board Meetings for some
special purpose, when they are admitted by a resolution of the Board. Since our
inception, only 2 people have applied for admission to a Board Meeting, namely Society
members Peter Stoneham (before becoming a Director) and John Rawnsley on two
occasions after his appointment as Editor of "Running Journal", These are the only
two non-Directors ever to be present at a Society Board Meeting. No non-member
has ever applied for permission to attend a Board Meeting. Since 42 Board Meetings
have been held, Directors have comprised the total attendance at 39 of these,

TRAMS IN THE BUSH.

Members DBob Prentice, Keith Kings, John Rawnsley and Doug. Prosser
toured Northern Victoria during the weekend 7th and 8th May, and made the following
discoveries — Q Class Car No, 194, which was scrapped pre-war, is in use at
Nagambie as a sleepout., Further North S Class No. 160 provides a contrast to
our own 164, as it is used as a pigsty at Baileston. The car was smelt before it
was sighted! At Rushworth, cable trailers Nos, 110 and 131 were inspected at the
rear of a milk bar. We subsequently learned that they were for sale at the "small"
sum of $1,000 each! The rumor of a bogie cable trailer supposedly located at
Tallygaroopna, almost resulted in the Editor's car being worn out in a frantic
search, but all to no avail. Heading for home, at,Rutherglen we were shown cable-
grip car No, 322, Close examination revealed that every white ant in Rutherglen
resided in the car. Near Seymour two ex-Board buses were discovered, the first
being a Leyland Cub, normal control, as purchased by the Board in the early 1930's
for use on one-man services. The second, an ex~Bourke St. Leyland double decker,
still in remarkably good condition and in use as a Contractor's hut, Also sighted in
Seymour was another Q class car No, 193, The trip revealed the remarkable amount
of old tramway equipment which is still to be found in country areas.

CORRECTION

Member Ian Stanley has pointed out the following corrections to the map which
appeared in our April issue with the article on the Hawthorn Tramways Trust:-
‘1, "Warragul Road" should read "Warrigal Road".
2. The platform at Kooyong Railway Station during the single line era was
on the "UP" side of the track, not the "DOWN" side as shown.
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GENERAL NEWS,

Chairman Bob Prentice was authorized by the Board to investigate the
purchase of an electric sander to simplify tedious interior sanding work on 217 and
other cars. A sander was subsequently purchased on favourable terms and has
greatly simplied this work.

The Preston Historical Society held a successful exhibition on 14th, 15th
and 16th July to celebrate the 40th anniversary of the City of Preston. The Society
sought our assistance and copies of a number of historic photos, plus a Bell Punch
and tickets from our archives contributed.

Have you changed your address? Several members have moved in recent
months and have remembered to notify us of their new addresses. If you have changed
your address recently without advising the Secretary please write immediately so that
Society records can be altered accordingly.

LOAN MONIES

Members will recall that shortly after the foundation of the Society, the Board
opened a loan of £500 in order to provide initial finance for the Society. As recorded
in earlier issues of this Journal, and in the annual reports, only 76% of this amount
namely £381 was subscribed (by 8 members). £100 of this was subsequently repaid
to the subscriber and immediately became a very generous donation to the society.
Five other members who subscribed a total of £216 have converted their subscriptions
to Loan No. 2 while a reply is still awaited regarding a further amount. The
remaining sum is not due for repayment until March 1967, There is thus plenty of
accommodation in Loan No. 2 and we would have no objection to it being over-
subscribed or even opening a third loan?!

If you can loan any sum of money to help the Society please contact the
Secretary for details and if desired, an "offer of deposit" form will be sent to you.
YOUR assistance is necessary to provide a working capital fund for Society work
projects.

BOOK REVIEW,

Just released is the third edition of "The Inter-urban Era'" by William D.
Middleton, published by Kalmbach. This book has been recognised for several
years as a classic in its field and the latest edition can be recommended as a worth-
while addition to the library of any traction enthusiast. The American scene,
including Canada and South America, is covered with 432 pages and 550 top grade
photographs, describing the beginning of inter-urbans in 1893, through the early
1920's when more than 10,000 cars were in operation, and then the depression
years and those following when the industry entered a decline from which it never
recovered. Although intended as an album rather than an historic study, much of the
material is of interest to the student of electric traction, Included also are a glossary
of traction terms, a list of car builders, a guide to almost every inter-urban railway
in America and a directory of trolley museums in the United States and Canada. Of
particular interest are photos taken at Trolley Museums. The Inter-urban Era is priced
at $15.50 and is available through the Society's book supply service,
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TOURS.

To commemorate the 50th anniversary of the Hawthorn Tramways Trust an
outing was conducted on Sunday, 3rd April, 1966, using ex~-CW 5 car now W 5 685,
and SW 2 436. In 685 we travelled to Batman Avenue terminus, Wattle Park,
Camberwell Depot, and then to Burwood, traversing the temparary track in use
during re-laying. From Burwood we returned to Hawthorn Bridge, where further
work was in progress, and then to Kew Depot. In car 436 we visited North Richmond,
Prahran, Windsor, St. Kilda Beach, Balaclava Junction, and South Caulfield, and then
ran into Glenhuntly Depot, where after a ten minute halt, we returned to South
Caulfield, cut into route 64, shunted at the new crossover, and returned to Hawthorn
Depot via Hawthorn, Glenferrie and Riversdale Roads.

On the 24th April we commemorated the Golden Anniversary of the Melbourne,
Brunswick and Coburg Tramways Trust with a tour in T class car No. 180. The
car was splendidly turned out by the Brunswick Depot staff and its fine appearance,
combined with the sunny afternoon to make one of the Society's most successful
tours., Leaving South Melbourne Depot we travelled via Sturt Street and the City
to East Coburg, On returning to the City the car was shunted at Lonsdale Street
crossover and Sydney Road was then followed to North Coburg, then back to Moreland
Road and into Brunswick Depot for a ten minute lay-over, thence via Moreland Road,
Lygon Street, Holden Street and St. Georges Road to East Preston. From there we
ran to Preston Depot and then travelled via High Street, Queen's Parade, Smith,
Gertrude and Nicholson Streets to Victoria Parade. Turning right into Victoria
Parade we travelled along Latrobe Street, William Street, Queens Bridge Street
and Kingsway to South Melbourne Depot. The tour was extremely well patronised
and the highlight of the afternoon was the beaming countenance of a certain well-
known gentleman as he tightly clutched a mysterious small leather bag from which he
refused to be parted.

Details of our next tour will be advised shortly by circular.

TRAMWAY MUSEUMS NOW BIG TIME.

Tramway Museums finally have achieved a status worthy of international
note. In "TIME" magazine for June 24th 1966 American Trolley Museums received
an excellent three-quarter page write-up, together with a top of the page photo
taken at the Branford Museum in Connecticut, This article has done much to dispel
the impression in certain circles that enthusiasts who build and operate tramways
museums are "playing trams",



The Melbourne, Brunswick and Coburg Tramways Trust,

ROYGL  PARADE
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The Tramway Museum Society

of Victoria Limited
R. H. Prentice, Manager

13 HIGH STREET, PRAHRAN
Phone 51-2664

| PHE TRAIVAY MUSEUE SOCIBIY OF VICTORIA LINITED,
Registered Offices~ 141 High Siveet, Prahran, S.1l., Victoria.
IGR.254, 18th, J?me, 19669

Iir. Goof? Summerton, 110 lMount Dandenong Road, Esst Ringwood, has for sale:-
CMIL0." 1 Oregan Eleotric No.58 Combine.
i B, "D? Class Steeple Cab Losoo,
Cauge 1 Caboose. ,
1 Caynation refrigerator car.
1 Stock car.
aguipment, 1 Box car,

- A1l 4n excellent condition.
PRICE: 340.00 or best offer, will consider oxchange for HOn3 agquipnant.
Interssted persons can contact Geoff at the above address or ‘phona 877058,
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TIE CLANALDER SEUNACHIE, MGR.227. 25th. July, 1966.

History, Anthropology, Folklere, Antiques, Itc. Published lionthly by
CLAT ALDER ARCHIVES., Editor John. J. Alderson, Iovelogk. Viotoria. Subscription
sate to this duplicatsd newsletter is $1 per year posited. [lenmbers vho are interssied
in S?bscribinc to "SENNACHIE' =re requested to contast lir. Aldereon direot, enclosing
the v1l.
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For an excellent dey in the Country - away from it all, visii:

\ir DONIYEROOK MINERAL SPRING AND PICNIC GROUNDS. Entranco fee, Adulta 10 cents.
' Children 5 cents.

Mr. A Sat'!;ler,
Propristor.
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BR . 229, Any lVember or Friond of this Scciety who desires to exchange ,

transparencies with an overseas enthusinst, please coniact lir. V.V. Jackson,
Avbot Street, Abbdotsford, or telephone 414942, lir. Jackson will be pleased to
vo Turther details on this matter,
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MIZ PRANHAY 1USEUL SOCINDY OF VICPORIA LIIITED vas founded in 1963 aes a
-profit organisation, and incorporated under the Vistorian Companies Aot 1961, It
set up 28 an independent ocrganisation to specialise in the acquisition and
servation of tramway vohioles and ameillary items for Museunm purpcses onlys it is
allied with any other o anisation, group or institution, (although if given the

ortunity, will cet ix choria, on behalf of same)y does not wish to engage in eny
roversy; neither enlcorszes or CDROSeE any CAUSEH,
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